ATIONS CERD

International Convention on

.. ) Di str.
the Elimination GENERAL
of all Forms of CERDI &/ SR 1233
Racial Discrimination 20 August 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fifty-first session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1233rd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Friday, 15 August 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS

CONS| DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COWVMENTS AND | NFORMATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (conti nued)

Twel fth and thirteenth periodic reports of Norway (continued)

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG AND URGENT
PROCEDURES (cont i hued)

Bosni a and Her zegovi na

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public nmeetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97-17906 (E)



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1233
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10.05 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMMENTS AND | NFORMVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item 5) (continued)

Twelfth and thirteenth periodic reports of Norway (CERD/ C/ 281/ Add. 2;
HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 6) (conti nued)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, the nenbers of the Norwegi an
del egation resuned their seats at the Committee table.

2. M. WLLE (Norway) thanked the Committee for the fairness of its
coments about Norway's report; all conments woul d be passed on to the
rel evant Governnent departnents.

3. Information relating to the situation of ethnic minorities in Norway was
difficult to gather because of the legislation on the privacy of data relating
to individuals; a case in point was Sam education. Sonme municipal statistics
were avail abl e, showi ng for instance, that the | evel of education in the
nort her nmost provi nces, where nost indi genous people lived, was | ower than

in the rest of the country. However, in Karasjok and Kautokeino, the two

muni cipalities with the highest Sam popul ation, the latest figures showed

t hat educational standards were actually higher than the average, particularly
for Sam wonen.

4, Menmbers had appl auded the fact that Norway had consulted

non- gover nment al organi zations (NGOs) in the preparation of its report to the
Committee and other United Nations bodies. However, the Governnent was wel
aware that the preparation of the report was its responsibility, and not that
of any other body.

5. The results of the annual surveys of attitudes towards imrgrants and

i mm gration policy described in paragraph 45 of the report (CERD/ C/ 281/ Add. 2)
showed that the process of building tolerance was a sl ow one, but the

| atest survey in 1996 revealed a steady inprovenent in attitudes, with up

to 70 per cent of respondents believing that Norway shoul d accept refugees
to at | east the same extent as before.

6. Referring to the forthcom ng general election, menbers had noted the
strong position of the Progressive Party, which currently stood at 23 per cent
in the opinion polls. It was also true that the Progressive Party had
declared its intention of abolishing the Sam Assenbly and reduci ng Sami

| anguage rights. As a civil servant, he felt that he should not coment
further on party political matters.

7. On the subject of the status of the Convention in national |aw, a new
provi sion of the Constitution, article 110 (c), added in 1994, stated that the
authorities of the State nmust respect and ensure hunman rights and that further
provisions would be laid dowmn by statute. Measures were now under way to pass
an act which would incorporate certain international human rights Conventions
into Norwegian | aw. The three conventions under consideration so far were the
United Nations International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1233
page 3

I nternational Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights, with their
optional protocols, and the European Convention on Human Ri ghts. However,
the International Convention on the Elimnation of Al Forms of Racia

Di scrimnation was still upheld in the Norwegian courts under the “principle
of presunption”, whereby national |aw should be interpreted in such a way as
to ensure that there was no conflict with international treaties to which
Norway was a party.

8. Menmbers had asked many questions about the Sam popul ati on of Norway.
The worl d popul ation of Sam s numbered between 70,000 and 100, 000, of

whom 70 per cent lived in Norway. Ten per cent of the Samis in Norway nmade
their living fromreindeer husbandry in the far north of the country, and the
rest were scattered around the country and had all kinds of jobs.

9. The status of the Sam people was laid down in article 110 (a) of the
Nor wegi an Constitution, under which the State was obliged to create conditions
enabling themto preserve and develop their |anguage, culture and way of life.
Norway had also ratified the I1LO Convention concerning |Indigenous and Triba
Peopl es (No. 169, 1989). The Sam Assenbly was free to decide which matters
it would deal with, and which public bodies it should address. Oher public
bodi es were obliged to consult the Assenbly in matters affecting the Sani
people. The Assenbly dealt with the allocation of funds for cultural, craft
and children's activities for the Sam people. The Assenbly was active in

i nternati onal bodies such as the Wrking G oup on Indigenous Popul ati ons

of the Sub-Comm ssion on Prevention of Discrimnation and Protection of
Mnorities, and participated in the work on the draft declaration on the

ri ghts of indigenous peopl es.

10. Regar di ng Sam | anguage rights, since 1992 the Sam and Norwegi an

| anguages had enjoyed equal status in six nunicipalities in the north of the
country. People had the right to use the Sam |anguage in their witten and
oral dealings with the public adnministration, the courts, the health

system etc. |If three pupils in any school requested teaching in the Sani

| anguage, they had the right to receive it.

11. The Sam Assenbly had 39 nenbers. In order to vote for the Assenbly,
peopl e nust consider thenselves to be Samis, and they or their parents or
grandparents nust use the Sam |anguage at home. Those conditions were the
nearest Norway cane to a definition of the term*“Sami mnority”. |In reply to
M. Wolfrum s question whether that “definition” contradicted that used for

t he Finno-ethnic (Kven) group, he observed that the two definitions were

used in a different context, since the designation “Finno-ethnic” was nore
subj ective and nore a matter of personal choice. |In the past, not many of the
Fi nno- et hni ¢ popul ati on had actually spoken Finnish, but there was currently a
revival of interest in the |anguage.

12. Menmbers had asked about a conplaint by the Skolte Sam popul ation to the
Eur opean Conmi ssion of Human Rights, claimng the exclusive right to practise

rei ndeer husbandry as an essential part of their culture and way of life. 1In

fact, legislation had now been passed which gave the Sam people the exclusive
right to practise reindeer husbandry in their traditional |ands.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1233
page 4

13. The CGovernnent carried out affirmative action in favour of the Sam
popul ation, although it did not always approve affirmative action for other
groups.

14. Norway had anal ysed its inplenmentation of article 4 (b) of the
Convention both before ratifying the Convention and since, nost recently in
a parlianmentary debate in 1991. Actual acts of racial discrimnation were
puni shabl e under the Penal Code. At the sanme time Norway was anxious to
protect the rights to freedom of expression and freedom of association. The
Governnment therefore considered that it had fulfilled its obligations under
article 4 (b) of the Convention without expressly prohibiting racist

or gani zati ons.

15. The Country Rapporteur, M. Rechetov, had quoted information, apparently
fromthe Ofice of the United Nations Hi gh Conm ssioner for Refugees (UNHCR)
about two mnors who had sought asylum but had been deported from Norway

wi thout their famlies being informed. He had not been able to find any
details of those specific cases, but in general such action would not be

perm ssible. Any further information which emerged would be included in

t he next periodic report.

16. Ms. BAKKEN (Norway) said she had no figures on the decrease in racial

vi ol ence follow ng the adoption of the Brununddal Plan of Action, designed to
reduce racial violence and harassment, but reports froma Vi etnamese group

i ndi cated that violence and damage had been reduced since the introduction

of the Plan of Action, although racist insults had not decreased. Research
had shown that verbal abuse, while not physically damaging, still caused
consi derabl e di stress, and the Government was therefore taking it very
seriously. The main group which had suffered harassnment before the inception
of the Plan had been the Iranians. Many of them had chosen to nove before the
Pl an had been introduced, so there was no way of know ng whether they would
have benefited fromit. Research indicated that the area was no | onger such
a target for racist or xenophobic groups.

17. Menmbers had asked about the work of the advisory teamto conbat racia
vi ol ence and harassnent referred to in paragraph 41 of the report. Extrene
ri ght-w ng groups had been seen as the main threat, because nmany raci st

i ncidents took place at denonstrations involving groups who di splayed extrene
right-wing enblens. The costs of the advisory team were paid by |oca
government, but in certain circunstances the central Government's Directorate
of Immigration paid for an initial consultation. The advisory team was nade
up of researchers and specialized social workers.

18. M. Rechetov had asked about the | anguages used for |ocal election
information in the Septenber 1995 elections. |Information had been produced

in Norwegi an and 14 ot her | anguages, including Urdu, Punjabi, Hindi, Tanm | and
Polish. Only 40 per cent of immgrants had participated in the election. The
nunber of people froman imm grant background elected to | ocal governnent was
| ow, al though the proportion in Gslo, where many inmgrants |ived, was higher
at 7.2 per cent, which was a reasonable reflection of the proportion of
immgrants in the population. A list of inmgrant candi dates had been
prepared, but no one had been selected fromit.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1233

page 5
19. Unenpl oyment anong i mrigrants had fallen slightly, from 12 per cent in
February 1996 to 10.6 per cent in February 1997. Unenpl oyment had decli ned
anong all inmgrant groups except people from Eastern Europe, which was

probably expl ai ned by the | arge nunber of refugees from Bosni a and Herzegovi na
who had only recently arrived. The figure of 25 per cent quoted by nenbers
m ght have been true a year before for certain national groups. For sone
other nationalities, the unenploynent rate was close to the national average
of 4 per cent. The Governnent was concerned about the | evel of unenpl oynent
among the inmm grant comunity. Inmmgrants were entitled to undertake
vocational training, even if they came from an acadeni ¢ background, although
peopl e with higher qualifications often went to universities or other

hi gh-level institutions for further training. The systemfor the recognition
of foreign qualifications was being reviewed. M. Rechetov had asked whet her
people with special skills were able to obtain work permts. Naturally, if
the skills in question were ones which Norway needed, such as those required

for the oil industry or the health service, then a work permt would be
grant ed.
20. M. Rechetov had asked whether multicultural teaching had been organized

in a way which avoi ded possible disputes with immgrant groups. Education in
Norway was indeed multicultural and, as far as she was aware, no conflicts
had ari sen.

21. The municipalities were at liberty to provide nother-tongue education
for children whose first | anguage was not Norwegi an: however, it was not
compul sory as inplied by paragraph 170 of the report. Mdther-tongue teaching
usually took place in the first four grades of primary school, and was used as
a tool to help the child to | earn Norwegi an. The subject of npther-tongue
education was currently being debated in Norway, and nore details would be

i ncluded in the next periodic report.

22. In respect of article 3 of the Convention, M. Sherifis had asked

whet her immgrants were segregated in Norway. There was no policy of
segregation, although 58 per cent of inmmgrants lived in the 10 bi ggest

muni ci palities. Refugees were settled all over the country as a matter of
policy. Inmgrants tended to be concentrated in certain areas of the capital
Gslo, and in one particular area, GCslo Inner East, a special progranme of
action had been introduced to inprove housing, traffic conditions, etc. over
t he next 10 years.

23. Ms. KOLSHUS (Norway) noted that nenbers had questioned the terns
“established”/“settled” mnority group. Since there was no officia
definition of a mnority in Norway, the ternms were used to distinguish ethnic
groups which had lived in Norway for a long time fromnore recent arrivals.
Norway was in the process of ratifying the Council of Europe framework
Convention for the protection of national mnorities, for which a precise
definition of “national mnority” would be needed.

24. M. Rechetov had asked about the denpgraphic information provided in the
report. The figures showed approximately 120,000 imm grants from Europe, of
whom approxi mately 40,000 canme from other Nordic countries and enjoyed specia
rights.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1233
page 6

25. She had been unable to find the details of the specific cases of
two students who had been deported from Norway, but in general foreign
students were allowed into Norway under certain conditions and woul d be
deported if those conditions were not respected. Any further information
woul d be included in the next periodic report.

26. The final results of the survey of prosecution practices related to
section 135 (a) and section 349 (a) of the Penal Code were not yet avail able,
but prelimnary results listed 40 all egations of violations of article 135 (a)
and 8 allegations connected with section 349 (a), which was the |ess serious
of the two. Seventeen of the 40 cases had been dropped before conmng to
court. More information would be included in the next periodic report.

27. A nunber of menbers had referred to a case in which the | eader of a

smal|l political party had expressed views which had offended the inm grant
popul ati on. He had been convicted under section 135 (a) of the Penal Code,
but had appeal ed against that decision to the Supreme Court. Any further

i nformati on woul d be included in the next periodic report.

28. M. Rechetov had asked about the decrease in the nunber of conplaints
of racially notivated crines. There was no real information to explain the
decrease. The police took its responsibilities very seriously, and plans had
been introduced to inprove relations with mnority groups in matters such as
raci al discrimnation and inmgration. Special police patrols had been
instituted in sonme cities where people of inmigrant backgrounds had been
denied entry to nightclubs or restaurants. The police worked together with

a nunber of NGOs in that area. At the national |evel, a plan governing the
policy of the police in inmmigration control was due to be conmpleted in

COct ober 1997.

29. She had no official information about the nunber of people with an

i mm grant background working in the public sector. However, a survey by the
Anti - Raci st Centre found that the proportion of immigrants working for the
central governnment was only about 2 per cent, but that the figure for OGslo was
about 10 per cent. In 1997, nine applicants with an inm grant background had
sought admi ssion to the police force.

30. The custons service had contacted an NGO for advice on the recruitnent
of people fromethnic mnorities although, owing to financial constraints, no
custons officers had been recruited in the previous 18 nonths. A nenber had
asked whet her certain admi ssion requirenents, such as |anguage ability, would
be waived in the case of applicants froman ethnic mnority. The custons
service was not willing to waive the | anguage requirenent, but it intended to
enphasize in its recruitnent advertising that applicants need not be Norwegi an
citizens.

31. Menbers had wel coned the directive issued by the Mnistry of Justice
encouragi ng nmunicipalities to select jury nmenbers fromethnic mnorities. She
t hanked M. van Boven for his comment on one particul ar case, which she would
pass on to the rel evant departnent.



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1233
page 7

32. M. Wbl frumhad referred to the case of a Muslim private school. It was
true that such a school had been denied perm ssion to open, on the grounds
that integration of Muslimchildren would be better achieved by sending them
to ordi nary Norwegi an school s.

33. M. van Boven had asked whether the victimof an offence under the Pena
Code could also claimcivil danages. That was possi bl e under Norwegi an

| aw, but she had no specific information about cases related to racia

di scrimnation. Any available information would be included in the next
periodi c report.

34. M. de Gouttes had asked about the possible establishment of a nationa
institute against racism For a five-year test period, free professiona

| egal advice was being provided for victinms of racial discrimnation, which
was partly intended to gain nore information to help with future planning.

35. M. Val encia Rodriguez had noted that racial notivation could be counted
as an aggravating circunmstance in cases of serious vandalism and had asked
what happened in | ess serious cases. She could assure himthat racia
nmotivati on was al so taken into account in | ess serious cases.

36. M. Val encia Rodriguez had al so asked about the detention of immgrants.
Under section 37 (5) of the Inmmigration Act, foreign nationals could be
detained for up to 12 weeks if their identity was in question. In 1995-1996,
75 such foreign nationals had been kept in detention, of whom 59 had been
asyl um seekers. Fifty people had been kept in detention in 1995, 23 of them
for over 12 weeks, and 25 people in 1996, 4 of them for over 12 weeks.

37. M. WLLE (Norway) confirnmed that Radio Nite Rocket was w thout a
licence for the tinme being and that its renewal was under consi deration
by the Governnent.

38. The proposed anendnent to the Working Environnent Act, referred to in
par agraph 150 of the report, had been submitted to Parlianent but there had
been no time for action to be taken before the elections. It would therefore
be up to the new Governnent to submit the proposal at a | ater date.

39. The spokesman systemin the arned forces, whereby soldiers elected a
spokesman to take up conplaints with the nore senior levels and in certain
wel fare matters, was now being used to conbat racial discrimnation

40. Al t hough a separate | egal prohibition against racial discrimnation

in connection with the renting or purchasing of a dwelling was under
consideration, as stated in paragraph 164 of the report, there were no plans
to submt a bill to Parlianment for the tinme being. The problemparticularly
concerned the private rental sector. Cases of racial discrimnation could be
taken to court under a general prohibition against discrimnation in the
Penal Code. However, it was up to the individual concerned to prove that

di scrimnation had taken place and the tine and cost involved often proved to
be a deterrent. The problem was al so aggravated by | anguage difficulties and
a lack of know edge of the housing market. The Government was establishing a
five-year provisional arrangenent to nonitor the situation and try to inprove
the possibilities of |egal assistance in discrimnation cases.



CERD/ C/ SR. 1233
page 8

41. The Norwegi an reports and the Comm ttee's concl usions were public
docunents in Norway. The concl udi ng observati ons had so far been sent to al
rel evant governnment authorities and had sonetinmes been discussed in follow up
meetings. They were also submtted to other bodies including interested NGGCs.
The concl udi ng observations resulting fromthe present session would be
published in a newsletter produced by the Mnistry of Local Government and
Labour and sent out to the municipalities, the Directorate of Inmgration

and ot her bodies every two nonths.

42. Wth regard to the participation of the Sam people in Parliament,

one Sam wonman who represented the Centre Party had made a speech in Sam in
Parliament, which she had translated into Norwegi an; there were a nunber of
ot her nmenbers of Parliament and one minister.

43. Quotas were used for the Sam in the education system and ot her areas
and their use in the | abour narket had been considered, in consultation with
i mm grant groups, but insufficient support had been generated.

44. Wth regard to the statenent nade by the National Board of Health on

H V/ AIDS, a press release had been issued and a letter sent to the Board's
counterparts in Europe and to the Centre for Human Ri ghts, which was requested
to make it available to interested Conm ttee nenbers.

45. M. AHMADU, referring to paragraph 12 of the report, said that it would
be useful in future to have a cl oser breakdown of the different nationalities
l[iving in Norway. |In the African group, there were undoubtedly N gerians and
other western and central African nationalities in addition to the Ghanai ans,
and certainly Egyptians and Al gerians as well as Mroccans.

46. Pursuing a question raised by M. Diaconu the previous day, he wondered
whether it was true that a party | eader had declared that he would abolish the
Sam Assenbly once in power, and whether there was any reasonabl e chance of
hi s being el ected.

47. M. YUTZIS said that his first reaction to the spokesman system had
been that it was a generous gesture, but on reflection he wondered why it was
necessary to have soneone else to convey conplaints, problenms or concerns to
superior officers.

48. The Committee would be interested to |l earn of the position of the

Nat i onal Board of Health. Any suggestion that Africans represented a threat
to the Norwegi an population as far as the transm ssion of Al DS was concerned
woul d i ndeed constitute a significant discrimnatory if not racist statement.

49. The rel ati onshi p between | anguage and enpl oynment was not an easy matter
to resolve, but the authorities did not appear to be addressing it as a matter
of priority. It was particularly inportant to find ways in which the | anguage
coul d best be taught to foreigners, bearing in mnd the difficulties
experienced by many in |earning another |anguage. |In addition to the |anguage

probl em however, there were certain perceptions of foreigners in society
whi ch nade prospective enployers reluctant to enploy them More information
on that aspect would be useful



CERD/ C/ SR. 1233
page 9

50. M. GARVALOV said that it was interesting that all three of the Nordic
countries to have appeared before the Conmittee at the present session had

a policy of integration. In Norway' s case he wondered whether it was ained
at the | onger established mnorities or the newy arrived immgrants.

I ntegration needed to be carried out in the light of the provisions of the
Convention. The State party had a sovereign right to follow an integration
policy, but the Committee sought assurances that it would not involve any

di fferentiati on between persons who were ethnically or otherw se different.

51. M. SHAHI, referring to paragraph 11 of the report, asked what
percentage of third generation i mrigrants had becone Norwegi an citizens.

52. Wth regard to | anguage difficulties, if greater attention were paid to
teachi ng the Norwegi an | anguage to imm grants their job prospects would
undoubt edl y i nprove, as |anguage was a particularly inmportant factor in
recruitnment.

53. Drawi ng attention to the reference in paragraph 11 of the core docunent
(HRI/ CORE/ 1/ Add. 6) to a conmittee of |awers to propose constitutional or
statutory provisions to increase the effectiveness of human rights instruments
in Norway, he asked for information on the current status of human rights
treaties in Norwegian | aw.

54. M. de GOUTTES said he was grateful for the explanation of the
Governnment's efforts to conbat racial discrimnation at a crucial tinme of an
upsurge of the extrene right and its political parties and their exploitation
of hostile and xenophobic ideas about the Sami and inmgrant minorities, in
the run-up to the Septenber elections. The manifestations in Norway reflected
the trend in several European countries and el sewhere. The Governnent's
policies were being tested and the Commttee | ooked forward to readi ng of

the outcome in Norway's next report.

55. M. ABOUL- NASR said that he was not against integration provided that

it was not forced and that the minorities concerned were not deprived of their
own religion and custons. |In that connection he asked for further informtion
about the refusal to allow a Muslimschool to be established and whet her
simlar requests by other religious groups had al so been refused. Were could
Muslinms teach their religion and culture to their children if not in school?

56. M. WLLE (Norway) said that the del egati on had taken due note of
M. Ahmadu's conmments regardi ng the denographi c breakdown and woul d bear
themin mnd in the future.

57. H s personal view was that there was no wi de support for the abolition
of the Sam Assenbly and he was confident that the trend towards giving
greater powers to the Samis and their Parliament would continue.

58. It was not conpul sory for soldiers or other individuals to pursue their
conpl aints through a spokesman: they were free to follow up their own
conpl ai nts.

59. Wth regard to the statenment by the National Board of Health about the
so-called high risk groups, the reaction in certain sectors had been such that



CERD/ C/ SR. 1233
page 10

the Board had apol ogi zed and enphasi zed that its goal had al ways been to
protect all parts of the population in Norway, w thout prejudice, against
HI v/ Al DS

60. Norway's policy of integration did not nean assimlation and did not
involve force. Its aimwas to have a society with equal opportunities, where
everyone could develop their own cultural and religious interests and

| anguage.

61. The Muslim school had been denied perm ssion first and forenost for
linguistic and not religious reasons. Children fromany religious group could
be exempted fromreligious instruction in Norwegian schools so that they could
receive religious instruction in their own religious centres. The question of
the Muslim school had involved a very difficult decision

62. Norwegi an citizenship could be applied for after seven years' residence,
al t hough certain categories could apply sooner. Third generation inmmgrants
could certainly apply.

63. The Committee and Country Rapporteur were thanked for having exam ned
Norway's report in a fair and constructive way. Norway attached great

i nportance to the dial ogue, and the del egation had taken due note of the
coments and suggestions of the Conmittee and would submit themto the

rel evant authorities.

64. M. RECHETOV (Country Rapporteur) thanked the del egation of Norway for
its report, which had further enhanced his respect for Norway.

65. There remai ned, however, the question of the status of the Convention
vis-a-vis Norwegi an | egislation, because he was not convinced that its ful

i mpl enent ati on had been ensured. It was hoped that due note would be taken of
the inportance of the Convention in the scheme of human rights and that that
woul d be reflected in its full incorporation into Norwegian |aw. The
principle that there should be no contradiction between international and
domestic nornms in |legal practice was not the issue: what was inportant and
shoul d be nmade cl ear was whether in cases of conflict, international |aw
prevail ed.

66. He noted that Norway had provided a wealth of val uabl e additiona

i nformati on on the Sam, including the welcone news that it had ratified ILO
Convention No. 169 and that in six nmunicipalities the Sam |anguage was on an
equal footing with Norwegian and had been admtted for use in the courts. He
al so hailed as positive the information that education in the Sam | anguage
was progressing, particularly anong Sami women. Neverthel ess, he did not
agree fully with the assertion by the del egation that the provisions of
article 4 (b) of the Convention had been fully inplenented in Norway.

67. The deportation from Norway of unacconpanied nminors who had entered the
territory was a very serious matter and deserved careful attention, which he
hoped woul d be infornmed by the data he had conveyed to the del egation



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1233
page 11

68. The participation of NGOs in conpiling the report testified to the care
gi ven by Norwegian authorities to information from such sources, for which
they were to be conmended, if only because that practice was not the norm

69. There was nothing to indicate that there was any forced assimlation
of ethnic mnorities. There were persistent fears to that effect but he
was convinced that the question of assimlation was left to the mnorities
t hensel ves to decide

70. He urged the Norwegi an Governnment to pay heed to M. de Gouttes' warning
about the destructive potential of sonme political forces which threatened to
under mi ne denocratic societies such as Norway's and ultimately stunt their

achi evenent s.

71. The CHAI RMAN t hanked the del egati on of Norway and conveyed the
Conmittee's congratulations to the State party for its encouragi ng report
and response to the Cormittee's observations on the previous periodic report.

72. The del egation of Norway w thdrew.

PREVENTI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EARLY WARNI NG AND URGENT
PROCEDURES (agenda item 4) (continued)

Bosni a and Her zegovi na

73. M. van BOVEN (Country Rapporteur) recalled that the Conmttee had
offered its good offices within the framework of its early warning and urgent
procedures through its decisions 1 (48) and 1 (49) adopted the previous year
and had sought to respond to the new situation that had come about in Bosnia
and Herzegovina follow ng the Dayton Agreement of 1995. The mmin question
yet to be addressed was therefore the extent to which the relevant Dayton
Agreenent provisions had been inplenented, since, according to information
available in the report of the Special Rapporteur of the Conm ssion on Human
Ri ghts, Ms. Elisabeth Rehn (E/ CN. 4/1997/56), much renmained to be achieved in
that regard

74. The Speci al Rapporteur had found that the institutions created under the
Agreenment were not all functioning as they should and while there had been
sonme progress in the field of human rights, in particular with the creation

of a national Comm ssion on Human Ri ghts, progress throughout 1996 had been
mnimal in certain key areas such as the return of refugees and displ aced
persons to their homes. There certainly was cause for concern about the
situation in Bosnia and Herzegovi na insofar as it remained a divided country
and the trend was towards a pernmanent demarcation of national and ethnic
boundari es which echoed the confrontational |ines between the groups.

75. A major issue of concern was whether refugees and di spl aced persons
could and did return. The Dayton Agreenent guaranteed themthe right to do so
and the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights also provided for
free choice of place of residence to all persons lawfully within a State's
territory. Serious obstacles to those rights still existed in Bosnia and
Herzegovina. O nore than 2 mllion citizens who had been displaced, UNHCR



CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1233
page 12

estimated that only 250,000 had returned, nostly to areas controlled by
authorities of their own national groups. He drew attention to the
Conmittee's General Recommendation XXII (49), which enphasized the right of
all refugees and di spl aced persons freely to return to their hones of origin
under conditions of safety and the obligation of States parties to ensure that
the return of such persons was voluntary and to observe the principle of
non-r ef oul enent and non-expul si on of refugees.

76. He wel coned the reference to the Convention in paragraph 21 of

the report of the Special Rapporteur, one of the very few nentions of the
Convention by rapporteurs of the Conmm ssion on Human Rights. [Incidents of
harassment and threats on the basis of national origin and political opinion
whi ch had conme to the Special Rapporteur's attention had made it clear that
freedom fromdi scrimnation enshrined in the Convention and ot her human
rights instrunents was not effective in Bosnia and Herzegovi na.

77. He quoted from CGeneral Recommendation XXII (49), paragraphs 2 (c)
and (d), to recall the Cormittee's position on the points raised by the
Speci al Rapporteur on property rights in Bosnia and Herzegovi na, where
donestic | egislation and admi nistrative practices which interfered with
property rights and the right to return and conflicted with the Dayton
Agreenment were still in effect and were being inplenmented, hindering the
return of refugees and di spl aced persons.

78. According to the Special Rapporteur's report, persons, anong them

M. Radovan Karadzic, who had been indicted by the International Crimnal
Tribunal for the Forner Yugoslavia (ICFY) for grave violations of humanitarian
| aw had been enjoying inpunity and freedom of nobvenent throughout the
territory without fear of apprehension. In resolution 1997/57, the Conm ssion
on Human Rights had called upon all States and all parties to the Peace
Agreenment to neet their obligations to cooperate fully with the Tribunal
particularly with respect to bringing indicted persons before the Tribunal

The Conmittee had nmade several calls to that effect as well, notably in
paragraph 4 of its decision 1 (49).

79. Those were sonme of the points of particular relevance. He had no
particul ar proposals to make in the light of his report but renai ned open
to suggestions from nenbers of the Conmittee.

80. The CHAI RMAN asked M. van Boven whether he had considered analysing in
his report the manner in which the mass nmedia reported on events in Bosnia and
Her zegovi na and the extent to which its reporting contributed to deepening

di vi si ons.

81. M. van BOVEN said that the question had not been at the forefront of
his mnd when he had prepared the report but he was willing to consider it
further if menbers of the Conmittee so w shed

82. M. RECHETOV asked whether M. van Boven had any information, or knew
where information m ght be available, on howthe 2 mllion refugees he had

referred to were broken down by nationality. Wen had the | argest waves of
et hni ¢ cl eansi ng occurred?




CERD/ C/ SR. 1233
page 13

83. M. van BOVEN said he had no specific information beyond what was
contained in the report of the Special Rapporteur

84. M. ABOUL- NASR said the Committee should have been better prepared

to discuss the topic by having its attention drawn to the docunents to be
consi dered. Better organization would al so have enabl ed the Country
Rapporteur to draw on information other than the two reports of the Specia
Rapporteur. Had the State party refused to attend the neeting, or not replied
to the request? When and where had it been notified that it would be

di scussed by the Commttee? The Committee should issue a short statenent
noting that the State party had not attended the relevant neeting, despite
havi ng been notified, referring to the Cormittee's previous deci sions on
Bosni a and Herzegovi na, expressing serious concern at the continuing problens,
such as displacenent, and urging that efforts nmust continue to inplenent the
Agreenent and find a solution to the problenms, especially those of direct
concern to the Convention, such as ethnic cleansing, the return of displaced
persons and property.

85. M. van BOVEN said he agreed, but would like his situation to be
understood. He had no office or staff, and requests for information or

assi stance were not always answered or, if they were, were not always of great
use. If the Conmittee wanted to continue with the early warning and urgent
procedure in a serious manner, it would have to re-exam ne its nethods and
sources of information failing which the procedure risked beconm ng a synbolic
gesture of no value whatsoever. He also saw very little purpose in drafting
any statenents that were nerely synbolic.

86. M. HUSBANDS (Acting Secretary) said the State party had been notified
of the present nmeeting - in witing on 9 June, and also by tel ephone. The
Per manent M ssion had told himthe matter had been di scussed with the capita
and it was the Government’s wi sh not to have anyone attend. A reference
file contained all the docunentation, which had been sent to the Country
Rapporteur; a duplicate set was available in the neeting room |In addition
each nenber of the Commttee had received a copy of all the docunments on

the first day of the session. There were 33 docunents in the Bosnia and
Herzegovina file; M. van Boven had relied extensively on only one. In
future, it would be hel pful for country rapporteurs under the prevention
procedure to tell the Secretariat which docunents they would be relying

on nost, so that they could be distributed to all menbers in advance.

87. M. WOFRUM said that the Committee's working nethods could be nuch
nmore effective if it received the bulk of the information at |east four to
five weeks before each session, which was not now the case.

88. He knew fromthe nass nmedi a and ot her sources that sone of the many
refugees from Bosni a and Herzegovi na who had returned to their country from
Germany had done so voluntarily and sone had not; each German Land acted
differently. How were those refugees being received in Bosnia and
Herzegovina? His information was that, if they were Muslins and were
returning to a place of origin predom nantly popul ated by the Mislim
comunity, they were well received; if, however, they were Bosnian Serbs or
Croats returning to a place predom nantly inhabited by another conmunity, they
faced tremendous problens. Houses recently built by the European Union, for




CERD/ ¢/ SR. 1233
page 14

exanpl e, had been burned down. The problem of continuing ethnic cleansing was
reported by all the mass nedia in Germany, and his perception was therefore
different from M. van Boven's.

89. The Conmittee should state that it had discussed the situation

deplore the fact that the State party had not participated; and deplore the
persi stence of the effects of ethnic cleansing. He would, however, be opposed
to sayi ng anythi ng about docunentation

90. M. SHERI FIS said it was true that the Country Rapporteur had been
wor ki ng under difficult circunstances. The Comrittee nust study the procedure
further, and if it wished to continue with it, should proceed in a serious and
busi nessli ke fashion. The Conmittee could do better than to nake synbolic
gestures, especially with issues of such paramount inportance. The Country
Rapporteur had quoted extensively fromthe Special Rapporteur’s report,

dated 29 January 1997, but there had been other inportant devel opnents since
then, such as the 30 May neeting of the Steering Conmittee of the Peace

I mpl ement ati on Conference, at the ministerial level, to review progress in

i mpl enenting the Bosnia and Herzegovi na Peace Agreenent. That Conmittee had
expressed its deep concern with the pattern of discrimnation and harassnent
of ethnic mnorities throughout the country, which had occurred with the

conpl acency of the authorities. It had also requested the conpetent
authorities to cooperate with the Real Property Comm ssion and with the

Conmi ssion on Human Ri ghts.

91. There were conpetent officials within the Secretariat who dealt with the
i ssue: why not ask themto be present and provide inside informtion when the
Committee next considered it? The Comrmittee’ s next session coincided with
that of the Conm ssion on Human Ri ghts; why not ask the Special Rapporteur to
be present during the Committee’s consideration of the issue? The Conmittee
could also sinply reiterate the position expressed in the decisions adopted at
its forty-eighth and forty-ninth sessions.

92. M. de GOUTTES supported the suggestion to invite the Special Rapporteur
to address the Conmittee. A statenent based on M. Aboul -Nasr's proposals
could be envisaged, stressing the four issues highlighted by M. van Boven:

di spl aced persons; security of person; property rights; and the questions

of inmpunity and cooperation with the International Crimnal Tribunal. The
Committee should also ask to be informed in greater detail on the work done
by the Orbudsperson, Ms. Haller, and the Dayton-created Comr ssion on Human
Ri ghts, conposed of judges from Bosnia and Herzegovi na and judges desi gnated
by the Council of Europe.

93. M. RECHETOV said he agreed with M. Aboul-Nasr and was in favour of the
Committee continuing its work on the subject. Information on the 2 mllion
refugees could certainly be obtained.

94. The resolutions of the Security Council had never set the Internationa
Crimnal Tribunal the task of defining a | egal concept for ethnic cleansing.

It had once been said that genocide could not be defined legally, and yet it
had been done. There was not a single reference to ethnic cleansing in the
Statutes of the Hague Tribunal, and yet people were already being put on tria
and accused of particular war crines, acts of violence and genoci de. He asked



CERD/ C/ SR. 1233
page 15

M. van Boven, who had been present when the Statutes had been devised, why
there was no definition of ethnic cleansing as a newcrine. |If all the facts
and figures were available on howit had all taken place, justice could be
done in a nore tangible way.

95. M. GARVALOQV said the Dayton Agreenent was not working as intended,
and the major issues had not been resolved. Division lines remained, as did
ethnic cleansing or racial discrimnation or harassnent on ethnic and ot her
grounds; that was the present situation in Bosnia and Herzegovi na. Rather
than reiterating the Commttee’ s previous decisions, he would prefer that

it express its deep concern that very little had been done in the way of
resolving the major issues in the State party. |If present trends continued,
the lines of division would only deepen; the idea of changing the attitudes
of the different ethnic groups within 10 or 20 years was not realistic.

96. M. SHAHI said it mght not be appropriate to refer to the absence of a
State party representative; one dispute anong the key factions there had been
their failure to agree on a list of diplomatic representatives, although the
probl em m ght since have been resol ved through the efforts of United States
anbassador Ri chard Hol brooke. The major issues remained, however; they had
still not been resolved in accordance with the Dayton process. The Conmittee
shoul d stress the inportance of rempving war crimnals from positions of
authority, even if they had already resigned fromtheir formal positions, as
i ndi spensable to any progress in inplenenting the remaining aspects of the
Dayt on Agreenent.

97. The Conmittee already had sufficient information to draw up a statenent
al ong the lines suggested. It had foll owed devel opnents in Bosnia and

Her zegovi na through the mass nedia, and it knew the nmain outlines of what
needed to be acconplished. M. van Boven was in a position to draft such a
text. It would have nore than just synmbolic value; after all, what val ue

did many Security Council resolutions have? The Conmttee should not fee
diffident on that account; having placed Bosnia and Herzegovi na on the agenda
of every session, silence mght be construed as a |lack of interest or

i ndi fference, or as neaning that the Commttee wi shed to abdicate its
responsibility for finding a way to inprove the situation

The neeting rose at 1.05 p. m




